e Ra =X
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(IR15 &8 B R A2 & a1 R AR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

ZEERF “TTRHF
2006 2005
ft i AR#FTT AREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
EEXR Turnover 6 1,685,367 1,712,102
3 E AR Cost of sales (1,381,010) (1,400,869)
EA Gross profit 304,357 311,233
HEBWA Other operating income 6 23,478 30,752
HEEHR Selling expenses (132,838) (169,639)
EERER Administrative expenses (142,382) (115,962)
Hith %% &R Other operating expenses (1,708) (18,292)
EIEEE R A XA Share of results of associates (699) (2,732)
% E R Finance costs 7 (20,475) (22,166)
B B4 A1 g A Profit before taxation 29,733 13,194
S Hi R X Income tax expense 8 (7,784) (13,696)
REEEN (BE) Profit (loss) for the year 9 21,949 (502)
HEep e Attributable to :

AR A R R A 5 A Equity holders of the Company 22,761 1,229
DR R Minority interests (812) (1,731)
21,949 (502)

B Dividends 10
— HHRE — Interim — —
— BRARHAR S — Proposed final 9,146 22,866
9,146 22,866
FRER R Earnings per share — basic 11 AR®ITRMB0.050 A K TRMB0.003
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FEeEEARSE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(RIZBEEERNZEETRAAR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
R-ZFEXNF+-_A=+—H

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

—EETRE ZEERF
2006 2005
[t &t AR¥TFIT AREF T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
FEREBEE Non-current assets
Al Technical know-how 15 3,052 4,182
M - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 16 779,316 812,832
FEETR Construction-in-progress 17 85,922 90,168
T EREZ Prepaid lease payments
A AERE on land use rights 18 86,404 88,985
BN RIRER Interests in associates 19 42,580 30,279
BN B ER Loan to an associate
——F LB U] — due after one year 20 — 4,440
AHEEZKE Available-for-sale investments 21 23,777 140,777
1,021,051 1,171,663
mEEE Current assets
rE Inventories 22 224,356 274,765
W R TR R R & Trade and bills receivables 23 233,499 281,721
T REZ Prepaid lease payments
BNHEERE on land use rights 18 2,419 2,471
H 4 fE M RE - Other receivables, deposits
e RBNFE and prepayment 24 49,647 65,110
FEWE BIER A EIZIE  Amount due from immediate
holding company 25 46,874 49,288
JRE Ui Bt 5 A ) FRIE Amounts due from associates 26 19,861 3,035
VHJ'%Z&% Available-for-sale investments 21 117,000 —
RITHREIER Pledged bank deposits 27 29,401 65,149
RESTR
TEE@MTH Derivative financial instruments 28 134 84
RITERRF 2L Bank balances and cash 29 133,134 298,042
856,325 1,039,665
FERFHECBE Assets classified as held for sale 30 4,199 =
860,524 1,039,665
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(RIEEE T2 B3t RAEH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
R-SEAF+-A=+—A

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

—ETRE —ETRE
2006 2005
fit it AR¥TFIT AREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
mE&E R Current liabilities
ENERREE Trade and bills payables 31 213,080 345,620
HibfE R EFER  Other payables and accrued charges 24 53,267 68,534
e HE & A R FRIA Amount due to an associate 32 — 145
JEX T Tax payable 3,320 3,877
ERXATHRITER Unsecured short-term bank loans 33 235,234 418,969
504,901 837,145
mEDEERHE Net current assets 355,623 202,520
HRERRHAR Total assets less current liabilities 1,376,674 1,374,183
BEREME Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 34 457,313 457,313
G Reserves 902,685 888,866
BOR AR ERAR S Proposed final dividend 9,146 22,866
FARIBREEGES Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company 1,369,144 1,369,045
PHBRRES Minority interests 3,343 1,092
HES Total equity 1,372,487 1,370,137
FRBDER Non-current liability
A= Deferred tax liabilities 35 4,187 4,046
1,376,674 1,374,183

KRB B REBFETSEEFI149ER T The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 149 were
T FE=-A -+t -HEEE=eRAERRE approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23rd

Afp - WHTIESHARESE March 2007 and are signed on its behalf by :
nE HRE Guo Qin Zhao Songguo
EFE 0 Director Director
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FeEEH X

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(IRBEZEEBRN G IRAIAEH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—FTENFF-A=1+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

AFREEEARE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

B (£ 1] hi DB
K* BRE LRe Ee fAERE ERHG FERN  REEH @it BEEE it
Asset
Share Share Capital  Reserve revaluation Exchange Retained  Dividend Minority
capital  premium reserve funds reserve reserve  earnings reserve Total interests Total

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFL ARETR ARBTT ARBTL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
(Note b) ~ (Note b)  (Note c)
(itb) (ib) (itc)

RZEERE-FA—H

At 1st January 2005 457,313 466,618 78,642 159,425 25,850 2,068 179,406 — 1,369,322 4,284 1,373,606
BEBNERELZERER
Exchange difference arising on

translation of overseas operation — - — — - (1,624) — — (1,624) 144 (1,480)

[ElEH A RIEREE)
Share of changes in equity

of associates — — — 118 — — — — 118 — 118
AERHT
Profit for the year — — — — — — 1,229 — 1,229 (1,731) (502)
BRRAEMN

Transfer from retained earnings — — - 783 — - (783) — — — —

RERERRZ MK EE
Total recognised income and
expenses for the year — — — 901 — (1,624) 446 — (277) (1,587) (1,864)

HEREAA
Disposal of a subsidiary — — — — — — — — — (226) (226)
KRNI AR BoMER
Acquisition of additional

interest in a subsidiary — — — — — — — — — (1,379) (1,379)
“ETREREASRE
Proposed 2005 final dividend — — — — — — (22,866) 22,866 — — —

RIZERFT-A=+-8H
At 31st December 2005 457,313 466,618 78,642 160,326 25,850 444 156,986 22,866 1,369,045 1,092 1,370,137

W R O OE R &R AR QS F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

(RIEEEEBIRNZ G5 R A H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE-ZZNF+-A=+—HIUFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

AEREEEARE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Bt [ £3 1] hi B
23 BREE LHe b (HEEG ERREE GEEN RER6 Bt  EE#2 #it
Asset
Share Share Capital ~ Reserve revaluation Exchange Retained Dividend Minority
capital  premium reserve funds reserve reserve  earnings reserve Total interests Total

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETR ARBTT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
(Note b) ~ (Note b)  (Note c)
(ith) (itb) (itc)

AERZETERERE

2005 final dividend paid - - — - - — - (22,866)  (22,866)
BEBNEBELCERZR

Exchange difference arising on

(22,866)

translation of overseas operation — — - — — 204 — — 204 60 264
RERLEN
Profit for the year — — — — — — 22,761 — 22,761 (812) 21,949
BaRAEN

Transfer from retained earnings - — — 2,078 - — (2,078) - — - -

REEERA U BE
Total recognised income and
expenses for the year — — — 2,078 — 204 20,683 (22,866) 99 (752) (653)

MEARZ Y BRRRAER

Capital contribution by minority
shareholder of a subsidiary — - — — — — — = = 3,003 3,003

ZERNFRRRERE

Proposed 2006 final dividend — — - — — - (9,146) 9,146

RZEZRE+ZA=+—H
At 31st December 2006 457,313 466,618 78,642 162,404 25,850 648 168,523 9,146 1,369,144 3,343 1,372,487
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FeEHZE B X MEF

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(RIZBEEERNZEETRAAR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TENFT_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

B at: Notes:
(a) RIEFBEEEEEEARRNRRZER([AR (a) Pursuant to the relevant regulations in The People’s Republic of China (the
B])  BRBERBMERATZRFDIK “PRC”) and the Company’s Articles of Association (the”Articles”), profit after
taxation shall be appropriated in the following order :
(1) R REEE (1) make up accumulated losses;
@) REBRHRBEFN10%EEERHBATE 2) transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory surplus
€ BEEAERMRAEeeRELME reserve. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve reaches
REI50% - A LATNFERER 50% of the registered capital, such transfers need not be made;
(8) RETTARNFE—A—HZA - I (8) prior to 1st January 2006, transfer 5% to 10% of the profit after
BHFE%E10%FEE RS ° R taxation to the statutory public welfare reserve, and since then it is
LA Z%E  THERRA=ES® not required to transfer any profit after taxation to the statutory public
welfare reserve;
(4) RERBEBRRNRRASHBZEER (4) transfer to the discretionary surplus reserve an amount approved by
BAEE R the shareholders in general meetings; and
(5) KRS TR - (5) distribute dividends to shareholders.
REEEERBATBEREAE A w2 DREIE The amount transferred to the statutory surplus reserve and statutory public
REBRFEGERIRE Y FEEERE ZBRE welfare reserve shall be based on the profit after taxation in the statutory
&mAETE o accounts prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting standards.
(b) BARNES RBRHDEBER (b) Capital reserve and share premium account
BAREEFEZOEANAIHEECENER Capital reserve comprises mainly surplus between the appraised value of
& A7 18 PR 2 B & 22 AT TR B BT AR A AR assets and value of shares issued when the Company was converted from
REFE - RIVBBRABITRERMESE @ I a state-owned enterprise to a joint stock limited company. Share premium
EHRETREER - RETREGRER & account arose from issues of shares net of issuing expenses. According to
KA S KRG & ERR e ARE MR - the relevant regulations in the PRC, capital reserve and share premium

account can only be used to increase share capital.

(c) EEES (c) Reserve funds

EERR EE i3 ¢

NEe nge LEe #
Statutory

Statutory public Discretionary

surplus welfare surplus
reserve reserve reserve Total

(3E(i) (FE(ii) (3 (iif)

(note (i) (note (i) (note (iii))
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZETRF—-F—H At 1st January 2005 68,336 29,543 61,546 159,425
il A NGIL et ) Share of changes in equity of associates 79 39 — 118
EERBHH Transfer from retained earnings 522 261 — 783
RZZEZRF+-A=+—H At 31st December 2005 68,937 29,843 61,546 160,326
EEREAEF Transfer from retained earnings 2,078 — — 2,078
8% (I (i) Transfer (Note i) 29,843 (29,843) — —
RZZERET-A=1—H At 31st December 2006 100,858 — 61,546 162,404

W RO OE ®H E R HOE R 24 F
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

(c) wEES (&)

()

(if)

(iii)

AEEFBRERFBEAER B 2Btz
HAMEI10%EEERBATES © BIE
EBRBABLEEZMEARM50%
B - FIATNERER « 2 AR A AR
FERSIE IR o BT AEE
BN EEREERAERE - HRED
JEARTA FEM & A H)25% ©

EE AR

REZEZRE-A—BZA AKH
IR BDATE MR B 2 BRBRE TR
5%E10%REEERATES ° =TT
ANE-—A—Bi REHEARKM
BUR REMERT R ME—EE— BN
T ZR(RRDD AR T
BRIVEERHE - AREH _TF
RNETZ A=+ HNEERRSE
#% - BIOEERRKAESEM -

EEEBRRES

ERRBAESWIRE S AL
WEERRETEA « Al BIEAHE
BRIEIARA - (EFEENE (5 R IR AE
IRERA R BE o (ETEBERTE
& INAKBRRERERB ©

R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

Notes: (continued)

(c) Reserve funds (continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Statutory surplus reserve

The Group is required in each year to transfer 10% of the profit after
taxation as reported in the statutory accounts prepared in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve
until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital. This
reserve can be used to make up any losses incurred or to increase
share capital. Except for the reduction of losses incurred, any other
usage should not result in this reserve balance falling below 25%
of the registered capital.

Statutory public welfare reserve

Prior to 1st January 2006, the Group is required in each year to
transfer 5% to 10% of the profit after taxation as reported in the
statutory accounts prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards to the statutory public welfare reserve. Starting from 1st
January 2006, the Group is not required to transfer any profit after
taxation to statutory public welfare reserve in accordance with the
amendment on section 167, Chapter one in the PRC Companies
Ordinance. Therefore, the Group transferred all the balances of the
statutory public welfare reserve as at 1st January 2006 to the statutory
surplus reserve during the year.

Discretionary surplus reserve

The discretionary surplus reserve can be set up by means of
appropriation from the retained earnings or transfer from statutory
public welfare reserve. Subject to approval by shareholders in general
meetings, the reserve can be used to reduce any losses incurred
and to increase share capital. Any transfers to the reserve also
require the approval of shareholders in general meetings.

W R E R ER O BR 2 F
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FEeEHE&ERER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(IRIEE B i IRAN 2 &5 IR Bl 45 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BEr —ZEENFL_HA=+—HIFEF

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

82

—ZETRE ZEERF
2006 2005
ARBTFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEXE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 7% B e A Profit before taxation 29,733 13,194
HE Adjustments for:
T E R TR Amortisation of prepaid lease
& RIE 5 payment on land use rights 2,425 2,471
REBRER Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 14,689 7,598
i 55 Amortisation of technical know-how 1,130 808
RITMEHA Bank interest income (4,411) (4,924)
e Depreciation 99,661 94,816
AEEEZRE Dividend income from
ZBREWA an available-for-sale investment (141) —
&R Finance costs 20,475 22,166
&S 3 A A AR Gain on disposal of land use rights — (12,912)
HEME - BE K Gain on disposal of property,
AW plant and equipment (2,289) (1,730)
AHEEREZ Impairment loss on
REEE an available-for-sale investment — 18,000
TEELBMIA Increase in fair value of derivative
NEE financial instruments (50) (84)
AEEEZRE Interest income from
FEMA an available-for-sale investment (6,588) (6,753)
BE N ERFEWA  Interest income from loan
to an associate (270) (80)
HEHB AR EE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary — 225
HEEBREYZ Realised gain on sale of
EHME= trading investments - (91)
FEIEEE & AR EE Share of results of associates 699 2,732
&R Write-down of inventories 4,630 —

W R ¥ 2 R ER O BR 2 F
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FEeEBRaEREER 2

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(RIEEEEBIRNZ G5 R A H)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BE-ZZNF+-A=+—HIUFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

—EERE —ETREF
2006 2005
AR¥TFTT ARKET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
2EESEEH 2 Operating cash flow before
RERERE movements in working capital 159,693 135,436
FERD Decrease in inventories 45,779 25,055
BRERRER Decrease in trade and bills
H b e I - receivables, other receivables,
EeEREFRER deposits and prepayment and
AREH O export value added tax receivable 50,808 35,887
EERFUR D
e EEER AR Decrease (increase) in amount due
IR A (5hn) from immediate holding company 2,414 (7,821)
FEUBE & AR ZIEM D Increase in amounts due
from associates (12,386) (554)
FERFBR RN 24 (Decrease) increase in trade and
H At &< 5k &% bills payables, other payables
FEET &R OR ) & and accrued charges (153,633) 28,834
JE B & A AR IA (Decrease) increase in amount
(R ) 120 due to an associate (145) 145
KEELEZRS Cash generated from operations 92,530 216,982
B R BTG PRC income tax paid (8,200) (5,388)
REXBREEZ NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ResH ACTIVITIES 84,330 211,594

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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e BRaEREEXR 2

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZEETRAAR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TENFT_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

—ZETRE ZEERF
2006 2005
ft st ARBTFT ARSFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RERY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
S ER TR Payment for construction-in-progress (41,156) (79,400)
BAmE F%& Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (31,069) (30,351)
REHE QA Investments in associates (13,000) (10,000)
RITEAHLEZRES Decrease (increase) in pledged
TEFOR A (BE ) bank deposits 35,748 (7,690)
EE%% %5 & Proceeds from disposal of property,
JEEFTE IR plant and equipment 8,624 3,145
B AT E 1R A Interest income from
ZFBWA an available-for-sale investment 5,040 6,753
2 ERTTHI B Bank interest received 4,411 4,924
B B & A A Interest income received from
B A WA loan to an associate 270 80
B YR AT Dividend income from
REZBREWA an available-for-sale investment 141 —
e RAER Loan advance to an associate — (4,440)
A Bl Purchase of technical know-how — (1,550)
T Rz TR Increase in prepaid lease payments
M EFKIFIE on land use rights - (1,123)
HEEBRE Proceeds on disposal of
15308 trading investments — 58,642
WEIAHEE 2 Repayment from available-for-sale
RERIEA investment — 13,000
& L A Proceeds from disposal of land
Fris a8 use rights — 9,254
HEERETRE Proceeds from disposal of
FT1S 5k I8 construction-in-progress — 4,147
& KB 2 A Disposal of a subsidiary 37 - 65
BERBARE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ZHePH ACTIVITIES (30,991) (34,544)

W RO OE ®H E R HOE R 24 F
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FEeEBRaEREER 2

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(IR15 &8 B R A2 & a1 R AR )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE-—TENNF+-_A=1+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

—EZTRE —EERF
2006 2005
ARTT ARKET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EERTER Repayment of bank loans (506,746) (625,305)
BARFE Interest paid (20,475) (22,166)
ENKE Dividends paid (17,040) —
HILIRITER New bank loan raised 323,011 487,989
PERERE Investments from a minority
shareholder 3,003 —
MEXBHRERQBE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (218,247) (159,482)
ReRAGEEM(KY) NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN
BinRE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (164,908) 17,568
EPZBEERBE&EREM CASH AND CASH EQUIVALETNS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 298,042 280,474
ERZHERBFEEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR
BIRTGEHIRBR SRR represented by bank balances
and cash 133,134 298,042
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e MBERME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(IRIE &8 B R A2 & a1 R R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TENNF+-_A=1+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

—REH

RARB/RPEARAME ([
B])ZEMzBnERAE - AAFE
ZEOR—NANANE+T-AEEE
BMAXZMBERAR ([BRMHM]) £
M EARRIE— AW NEFEAER
WG LET -

BRE_ZTRFLATABLURA
BEEEEEEEREQ@REEAD
B EK [2006] 355 BAN © HTEBIE
EEEEREEARZERAENL
R EBESEERAEE LR ([F
FRE|)NEIEERNHEESSE
EETERARAR (TEEER]D)
([E4]) -

EHE  ARARESRREBER
RFEBED B RARE) 2 RRE
BRARINERZERAT - MRAR
Rl A BEEMAINBEEEREE

A °

ARABEMPERN T ELRMWE
ZIHWER AR ER ] —H o

R EMBREAARE (TAR
¥ 2% ARETREARTEZY

REEEER -

ARBREKBAR ([AEE]) X
ENEFE  HENHELERM
Z A (EIREMEM -

General

The Company is a joint stock limited company established
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with limited
liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
December 1996 and listed its A shares at Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in July 1997.

According to Luguo Zi Qi Gai Han [2006] No.35 dated 19th
July 2006 issued by the State-owned Assets Supervison and
Administration Commission of The People’s Government of
Shandong Province (the “Commission”) (L& A RETE
FEELEEEZE 28 EA MK [2006] 355 X 1F), the
state-owned shares of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited (“SXPGC”) held by Xinhua Lukang
Pharmaceutical Group Corporation transferred to Hualu
Holdings Company Limited (“Hualu Holdings”) (the
“Restructuring”) without consideration.

After the Restructuring, the directors of the Company regard
Hualu Holdings, a state-owned limited liability company
established in the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company
and SXPGC, a wholly state-owned limited liability company
established in the PRC, as being the immediate holding
company.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the company
information section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the development, production and sales of bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations, chemical products and other
products.

W R ¥ 2 R ER O BR 2 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

RAMITREBITHES
MERSTEN ((FBME
wEEA])

RAFE  AEBEXFAZIEH
BEESMAg ([EFS5MA
) MBEMFER - BRI RBRE
(ETXHBAIFB B SRS %E
Al ZFERBAR-ZSZTRF
+—A—HB®=—ZTZTF—H—H
AR AR ST HME - KAFE
B RS ERIH A ST FEE KA
FEAFEsEERERET AN
WEE RN E - B BAEL AT

=i

AEER_FTNFT_A=1—
B EEREA TIIEEMERE
MZHER - KRR EETAY - &
AL SR ER T HAEH
B BRRERTEREME

S/ 48
N2

2.

FEGFER ([BAEER]) 153} (BFTA)

Hong Kong Accounting Standard
(“HKAS’) 1 (Amendment)
BRI REEAE TR

R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
a number of new standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) which are either effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st December 2005
or 1st January 2006. The adoption of the new HKFRSs had
no material effect on how the results for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new standard,
amendment or interpretations that have been issued but are
not yet effective as at 31st December 2006. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of these standard,
amendment or interpretations will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the Group.

BRRE

Capital disclosures!

g TR : HEE

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures'
&8 W 1% R 5 2RI 5 857 18 & 5y &2
HKFRS 8 Operating segments?
53 (BRVBREERELZES]) - BBETH BREEEGHENF29R S BRAE T
B 755 5 45 i R R & A4 U5 )RS
HK(IFRIC) — Int 7 Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies?®
58 (BRVBREMELZES]) - REFESH BEMBHREERIF 2R SR
HK(IFRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 24
58 (BRVBREEERES]) - REFR EEBRAXTELAS
HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of embedded derivatives®
5E (BHRVBRERERZES]) - REFE105% P HUBRSE RARES
HK(IFRIC) — Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment®
Tt (AR BREHEZER) - RBFENR BTEUBRSENRF—SEREFRNRS7
HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions’
E8 (BARMEREMREZES) - 2EF12% REBKLLEELHS

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12

'REFRLF A HRZENFEHRER
A NE—RA—HRZBROFERREER
CHRCRERFZRA - AR RNFERRER -
CREEERFRA AR RNFERRLEN -
“ERRFRA AR ROFEARER o
NET—A—BHZERNFERRER
tHE=HA- AR BRMFRARER -
PRIETNF-A-ARZRNFERRER -

Service Concession Arrangements®

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2009.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March 2006.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st May 2006.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June 2006.

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st November 2006.
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March 2007.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2008.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for property, plant and
equipment and financial instruments, which are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets
consist of the amount of those interests at the date
of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in
excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment
to cover the losses.

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are carried
in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

Interests in associates (continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after assessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

Technical know-how

Expenditure on technical know-how acquired is
capitalised and amortised using straight-line method
over their useful lives, but not exceeding 20 years.
Technical know-how is not revaluated as there is no
active market for these assets.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

Intangible assets (continued)
Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised
on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried
at cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Intangible assets (continued)
Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired (see the accounting policies in respect
of impairment losses for tangible and intangible assets
below).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at their revalued amount, being the fair
value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the
balance sheet date.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase
is credited to the consolidated income statement to
the extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation
of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred
to retained earnings.

Depreciation is provided to write off the fair value of
items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use right is considered as
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, amortisation is charged to
consolidated income statement over the period of the
right using the straight-line method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

)

(9)

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress comprises land use rights
and buildings, plant and machinery on which
construction and installation work has not been
completed. Construction-in-progress is carried at cost
less any recognised impairment loss which includes
costs of acquisition of land use rights, development,
construction and installation expenditure incurred,
interest and other direct costs attributable to the
development less any provision for impairment. On
completion, the construction-in-progress is transferred
to appropriate categories of other property, plant and
equipment and depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset is
available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the assets’ previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, including loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of each category of financial assets are set
out below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amount due from
immediate holding company, amounts due from
associates and pledged bank deposits) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments. At each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in
equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Any impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not reverse in profit or loss in
subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured as cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent
periods.
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
a group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of other
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills
payables, other payables, amount due to an associate
and unsecured short-term bank loans are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivatives financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivatives financial instruments such
as forward currency contracts to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are taken directly to the consolidated income statement
for the year.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is
calculated by reference to current forward exchange
rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(M

@

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Impairment losses (other than intangible assets
(see the accounting policies in respect of
intangible assets above))

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
other standard.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

U}

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the relevant lease terms.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initital direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

U}

(m)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in
equity in the consolidated financial statements.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Renminbi)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component
of equity (the exchange reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs. Grants related to depreciable assets are
presented as deferred income and are released to
income over the useful lives of the assets. Grants
related to expense items are recognised in the same
period as those expenses are charged in the
consolidated income statement and deducted in
reporting the related expense/are reported separately
as “other operating income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p)

(a)

Borrowing costs

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management makes various estimates and judgments (other
than those involving estimates) based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information. The key
sources of estimation uncertainty and the critical judgments
that can significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
financial information is disclosed below :

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The determination
of the useful lives involve management’s estimation. The
Group assesses annually the useful life of the property, plant
and equipment and if the expectation differs from the original
estimate, such a difference may impact the depreciation in
the year and the estimate will be changed in the future
period.

Amortisation of technical know-how

Technical know-how are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The determination of the
useful lives involve management’s estimation. The Group re-
assesses the useful life of the technical know-how and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such a difference
may impact the amortisation in the year and the estimate will
be changed in the future period.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjust credit limits based on payment history
and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined
by the review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitors collections and payments from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit
losses based upon its historical experience and any specific
customer collection issues that it has been identified. Credit
losses have historically been within the Group’s expectations
and the Group will continue to monitor the collections from
customers and maintain an appropriate level of estimated
credit losses.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(continued)
Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at each balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production. The management estimates
the net realisable value for such finished goods based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at each balance sheet date and makes
allowance for obsolete items.

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity and
debt investments, bank loans, trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, trade and bills payables and other payables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. In order to mitigate the foreign currency risk,
foreign currency forward contracts are entered into in respect
of highly probable foreign currency forecast sales in
accordance with the Group’s risk management policies.

Certain trade receivables and bank loans of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arises.
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5. MBRKREEAERBRE 5. Financial Risk Management Objectives
(&) and Policies (continued)
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The Group exposed to fair value interest rate risk through the
fixed interest rate bank loans.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
floating-rate borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the
fair value interest rate risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are trade and other
receivables and bank balances, which represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group’s
management continuously monitor the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate allowances are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because majority of
the counterparties are state-owned banks with good
reputation.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.
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e MBEHE=EMIE =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IR15 &8 B R A2 & a1 R AR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TENNF+-_A=1+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

MEREEEEEREREE 5. Financial Risk Management Objectives

(&) and Policies (continued)

e B R B Liquidity risk

REEzBEERERANARITHE The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
B HREEASHBEHEREREY continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
T o REBEFAEZREBERRE borrowings. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is minimal.
iR -

EXT WERSBEH 6. Turnover, Revenue And Segmental

Information
AEEFEZNEME  HERHEE The Group is principally engaged in the development,
L2 RME - A  (cIREME production and sales of pharmaceutical products,
m e REEHERBAT|EHAT - preparations, chemicals and other products. Revenues

recognised during the year are as follows:

—EEX —TERF
2006 2005
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EETE- EREERA Turnover — Sales of goods 1,685,367 1,712,102
H fth ZERSIA Other operating income
ERITH B UA Bank interest income 4,411 4,924
Bt N B) B ZR A B A Interest income from loan
to an associate 270 80
A& 2 IREF B WA Interest income from
an available-for-sale investment 6,588 6,753
A& 2R ERBIA Dividend income from
an available-for-sale investment 141 —
He A Rental income 1,725 1,786
&AL 88 B WA Sales of scrap materials — 857
HEWE - BELEEWZE  Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 2,289 1,730
HEBEREZEERKEZE Realised gain on sale of
trading investments — 91
HH S P R R e Gain on disposal of land use rights — 12,912
bE W Net exchange gain — 928
H A, Others 8,054 691
23,478 30,752
FERL N Total revenues 1,708,845 1,742,854
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FEMBHERMEE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIE &8 B R A2 & a1 R R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TENF+ A=+ HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

6. EXT WaERS7BEH 6. Turnover, Revenue And Segmental

(&) Information (continued)
RNEEIRFER S B KB R = Analysis of the Group’s segment information for the year by
DEERZ5)0T business segment and geographical location of customers is

set out as follows:

(i) EEomEH (i) By business segment
-4 3 ik
2006 2005
BRRE it At Bmii A it
Pharmaceutical Other Pharmaceutical Other
business operations Total business operations Total

RMBO0O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMBO0O0  RMBUOOO
AERFT ARRTR AERRFT ARETT ARETI  ARETI

AHMA Segment revenues 1,699,827 9,018 1,708,845 1,719,832 23,022 1,742,854
PHEE Segment results 41,889 9,018 50,907 33,070 5,022 38,092
FEIEERNFZE Share of results of associates (699) (2732)
H%ER Finance costs (20,475) (22,166)
WA AT A Proft before taxation 29,733 13,194
FEREY Income tax expense (7,784) (13,69)
KEERFI(ER) Profit (loss) for the year 21,949 (502)

W R O OE R &R AR QS F
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FEMBEREE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IR15 &8 B R A2 & a1 R AR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TENF+ A=+ HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

6. EXH WERSHBEH 6. Turnover, Revenue And Segmental

(#&) Information (continued)
(i) EBoBER (&) (i) By business segment (continued)
- 1 782 “EENE
2006 2005
ERRE Efh @it gnkh i st
Pharmaceutical Other Pharmaceutical Other
business operations Total business operations Total

RMB'00O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBO0O0  RMB000  RMBI000
ABRFE ARRTR ABRFT ARETT  ARETT ARETR

BE ASSETS
AHEE Segment assets 1,698,218 140,777 1,838,995 2,040,272 140,777 2,181,049
BENAES  Interests in associates 42,580 - 42,580 30,279 = 30,279
FREEE Consolidated total assets 1,881,575 2,011,328
8ff LIABILITIES
rHak Segment liabilities (501,581) - (501,581) (833,268) - (833,268)
APREE Unallocated corporate liabilties - - (7,507) - - (7,923)
FREAR Consolidated total liabilities (509,088) (841,191)
& OTHER INFORMATION
BARY Capital expenditure 72,205 - 72,205 112,424 = 112,424
NEREH Depreciation and amortisation 103,216 - 103,216 98,095 - 98,095
AEHERE  Impaiment losses on

LREEE an available-for-sale investment - - - - 18,000 18,000
HEME  BE  Gain on disposal of property

ELG plant and equipment (2,289) - (2,289) (1,730) - (1,730)
HETHEMAE  Gain on disposal of land use rights - - - (12912) - (12,912)

e
&R Write-down of inventories 4,630 - 4,630 - - -
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FEMBHERMEE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIE &8 B R A2 & a1 R R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TENF+ A=+ HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

6. EXT WaERS7BEH 6. Turnover, Revenue And Segmental

(&) Information (continued)
(i) BEREHESBIH (ii) By geographical location of customers
SEUA
Segment revenues
—ETRE —ETREF
2006 2005
AR¥TiT ARKT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
PR (BIERE) PRC (including Hong Kong) 988,706 1,081,298
BM Europe 229,080 318,489
EM Americas 344,901 111,972
H A B K Others 146,158 231,095
1,708,845 1,742,854
AREEBBEII%Z EEHMNKE Over 99% of the Group’s assets are located in the PRC and
CFTLUS B RSN EEMEARAL therefore the analysis of segment assets and capital
B[R 5 FE R} expenditure is not presented.
7. BEBEEH 7. FINANCE COSTS
—ETRE —TTRF
2006 2005
AR#TFTT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRTTE A B Interest on bank loans 20,475 22,406
B B BG Less: Government subsidies — (240)
20,475 22,166

W R O OE R &R AR QS F
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e MBEHE=EMIE =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

RSB 8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

—EER —ETRF
2006 2005
AR®TFTT ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FE B PRC enterprise income tax
— AH — current 10,273 6,221

— AATFE (1) — (over) under-provision
DI R LEE in prior years (2,630) 3,582
RIERLIE (F72£35) Deferred taxation (note 35) 141 3,893
7,784 13,696

(a)

(b)

b 3 18 LT AR g o
BRDAR R R R
o

RNA R E—F R A R sE

BT R AT R E R
BT - RBEFERHEZLR
fB[1994] B #2151 5% KBE R
= T R 1 3 1A ] 2 A AR R
BEREEBBE) - 1
20024 R #1T AT 15 H 1 &
15%RI R + WIS & bR
T5EBPIHLTE & #2004 H#E -
MR 2 AL 7 B [ A A 48
ERRERATER15%  F
BEIINCEMFERRE
#33% W B TE & M B 75 5B
FIfESR o

BE_TTERNR_TTALF
T A=+—B I-mEEH
FE > AKEETEMRA
MEEMBERMXR
33% °

(a)

(b)

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated at the
applicable rates in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC.

The Company and a subsidiary are located in the
high-technology economic zone of Zibo City and are
entitled to preferential PRC income tax rate of 15%
from year 2002 onwards, according to [1994] Guo
Shui Fa No. 151 “The notice of applying favourable tax
policies for the new and high technology companies”
issued by the State Administration of Taxation. The
companies have obtained the relevant approvals from
the local tax bureau. From year 2004 onwards, the
operating results of the companies derived from
business conducted in the high-technology economic
zone are subject to a preferential income tax rate of
15% while the business conducted outside the high-
technology economic zone are subject to an income
tax rate of 33%. This has been filed with the local tax
bureau as a record.

Other companies within the Group are subject to

income tax rate at 33% on their taxable income for the
years ended 31st December 2006 and 2005.
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FEMBHERMEE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIE &8 B R A2 & a1 R R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TENF+ A=+ HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

8. FM#EKRAX® 8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(c) AEBEHE-ZZTAR=Z (¢)  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
ERFE+-_A=1+—HLW made as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is
1B 1 3] 67 [ I 42 8 ER A5 AT A derived from, Hong Kong for the two years ended 31st
BENBEBTER - BIRE December 2006 and 2005.

ML |HEBFSHBAE

(d) FRZMEXHELEEGIER (d)  The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
KRBT AL R T - profit before taxation per the consolidated income

statement as follows:

—ETRE —TTHE
2006 2005
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRI A4 Al Profit before taxation 29,733 13,194
B *E33% (ZZT A% ©  Tax at domestic income
33%) st E 2R tax rate of 33% (2005: 33%) 9,812 4,354
FETRARE 2 Effect of preferential
tax rate in the PRC (3,092) (841)
FRATIMA Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose (937) (9,030)
TAMHZ L Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purposes 4,117 11,018
ABRABEER Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 514 4,613
PARIE [ (% 18) DIRE2E(E  (Over) under-provision in prior years (2,630) 3,582
REL Tax charge for the year 7,784 13,696

R O3 O E 2 & KR B R A =
114 P

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




e MBEHE=EMIE =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

9. FFEERF (KR 9. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
REEm A (B5E) Profit (loss) for the year has been

EMETIIER -

arrived at after charging:

—ZETRE —ETRHF
2006 2005
AR¥TFTT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEREBEER Advertising and promotion expenses 42,219 71,673
RIZREK Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 14,689 7,598
&b 5 A 2 TR AN Amortisation of prepaid lease
0 & R IE 5 payment on land use rights 2,425 2,471
B 1y 85 Amortisation of technical know-how 1,130 808
% BN B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,084 1,085
e Depreciation 99,661 94,816
At ERE 2R EEE Impairment loss on an available-
for-sale investment — 18,000
HEH B A R EE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary — 225
(TR EES Net exchange loss 3,835 —
THREFEEHE Operating lease rentals on
land and buildings 1,191 922
HERREER Repairs and maintenance expenses 736 505
ot 75 & R B A AR Research and development costs 16,984 19,676
FEAG S & R R B IE Share of tax of associates
(BIEE (R B (included in share of results
YNCIES 1)) of associates) 101 386
BINAK(TBEES Staff costs (excluding directors’ and
REEME) (FaE12) supervisors’ emoluments) (note 12) 138,933 130,147
FEMUR Write-down of inventories 4,630 —
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e MBEE=EMIE 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIE &8 B R A2 & a1 R R H)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TENNF+-_A=1+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

10. BRR 10. DIVIDENDS
—EEZX —ZETRF
2006 2005
AR®TiT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERFHIRE Interim dividend paid:
m(ZETAF &) Nil (2005: Nil) per share — =
FORAHAR S Final dividend proposed:
Tk A R#0.027T RMBO0.02 (2005: RMBO0.05)
—EETRF per share on 307,312,830 A shares
FRARK0.057T) and 150,000,000 H shares 9,146 22,866
1307,312,830% Af% &
150,000,000% HZ 5+ &
9,146 22,866

11.

NA A E 2 #1%307,312,830 %A
% %.150,000,000% HE% » #EK AR HA
BEERARK0.02T(—EEH
£ AR¥®o0.057T) (rab
0.0202 L (ZEZEARHF : BK
0.04827T) + ARRER) - R EHE
FRERKREBFARS EHERE
RERE SRR AT ER BREHE ©

BREFEF

FRRERG T RBIEARR B IRER
BAZELMAEE R AR
22,761,000 L (ZZEZH & : AR
1,229,0007T) KIEFAE /TG
Z INHEF 15 81457,312,8300% (==
TR : 457,312,8300%) 7t & o

HE_ZZEFN_ZTRF+=
A=+—BIMEAFE ' #9RFH
RENEE R EN T B - Bt
BEHERBAENE ST LE -

11.

The final dividend of RMB0.02 (2005: RMBO0.05) per share
(approximately HK$0.0202 (2005: HK$0.0482) per share,
including income tax of A shares) on 307,312,830 A shares
and 150,000,000 H shares has been proposed by the directors
of the Company and is subject to approval by shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting and has been included as a
dividend reserve in the consolidated financial statements.

EARNINGS PER SHARE — BASIC

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of RMB22,761,000 (2005: RMB1,229,000) and based on the
weighted average of 457,312,830 (2005: 457,312,830) shares
in issue during the year.

There was no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share
for the two years ended 31st December 2006 and 2005 as
there were no dilutive shares outstanding during the two
years ended 31st December 2006 and 2005.
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12.

FEMBEREE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(IRIBZEEBRN G5 IRAIEH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BIRF (FEBEER
ESm&)

BE—FTENFF-A=1+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

12. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’

AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION)

—EETRE —ZETRF

2006 2005

AR¥FT ARKEFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FHEITE Salaries and wage 92,448 85,390

8 T 8l K E At 2 A Staff welfare and other benefits 27,671 26,841
RIRERIETEIHEI — RE  Retirement benefit scheme

HERETE (BT aE) contributions — defined
contribution plans (Note) 18,814 17,916
138,933 130,147

sz

AEESEMFBITRARKTE - BF2
HREHBE—FAEENTFREZF S - 1
A RGERE([BREMA) B 8ER23% (Z T2 h
& 23%) - BAEABRBRBRAK ERAAR
#4293 T (ZTTHF : ARKS,5347T) °
XHEERAGTEINEAREERBiAAER
BR A HIRR -

FiE B TR EERIN RS R E R R
T & MEE e B TE LL O AR KRR o it 77 BT
R RN B RBEARMAAREZRE
RRF AR REOE B AR FI - Btk B EX
PRty oM - AEEW ERERREI TR
RRIARE MR R RAEF -

Note:

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in a basic
defined contribution pension scheme organised by the local municipal
government, whereby it is required to pay contributions at the rate of 23%
(2005: 23%) on the total salaries, bonuses and allowances (the “relevant
income”) paid to the Group’s staff in the previous year. The monthly relevant
income per head of a staff is subject to a cap of RMB4,293 (2005: RMB3,534).
Contributions to this retirement scheme are charged to the consolidated
income statement as and when incurred.

All employees are entitled to retirement benefits equal to a fixed proportion
of their salary at their normal retirement age. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and
future retired staff of the Group. Accordingly, the Group has no other material
obligation for payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees other than the contribution described above.
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e MBEE=EMIE 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZEETRAAR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TENFT_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

13. EERETEME 13. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS
ENHEN TR (CETRE The emoluments paid or payable to each of the sixteen
T/ EERESZH M : (2005: eighteen) directors and supervisors were as follows:
- (10
2R BHREF
e K ias AR a8
Salaries,
BE_ZERE bonuses,  Retirement
+ZR=+—HLEE allowances benefit
For the year ended and other scheme
31st December 2006 Fees benefits contributions Total
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITEE Executive directors
Bime ik (et 1) Mr. He Duanshi (Note 1) - 144 1 155
2B R & (fiat1) Mr. Liu Congde (Note 1) — 20 2 22
FELL Ms. Guo Qin — 295 1 306
HEREEAE Mr. Zhao Songguo — 180 11 191
BXELE Mr. Ma Yong — 170 11 181
2R & (fifaF2) Mr. Liu Zhenwen (Note 2) 147 10 157
fEREERE (2) Mr. Ren Fulong (Note 2) 240 1 251
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
BERLE Mr. Dai Qingjun - 50 - 50
ERELAE Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen - 50 - 50
HREAEE Mr. Xu Guojun - 50 - 50
FHRREAE Mr. Sun Minggao - 50 - 50
EF Supervisors
B RELE (K73 Mr. Lii Zhongde (Note 3) — 56 11 67
& A IES A& Mr. Zhang Yueshun — 20 — 20
MEBEE Mr. Tao Zhichao - 20 - 20
mEMEE Mr. Gao Qinggang - 120 1 131
TAREE Mr. Yu Gongfu - 170 1 181
k] Total - 1,782 100 1,882

W RO OE ®H E R HOE R 24 F
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13.

FEMBEREE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(IRIBZEEBRN G5 IRAIEH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

EEREFME »

Kt -

1 R-ZBZXRFNHNBBE -
2 REBZERFENANBEERE -
3 RZZEZLF - A HEE -

BE_ZT A NFN_ZTTRF+=
A=+—BIMEAFE  REES
REZRECAHE - NEEWE
MESHESEHERMES  (FA
B AIABK AR EE 2 SRk 1
ABEBEE -

13.

BE—FTENFF-A=1+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

1. Resigned on 9th June 2006.

2. Appointed on 9th June 2006.

3. Resigned on 2nd February 2007.

No directors and supervisors waived any emoluments for the
two years 31st December 2006 and 2005. During the year,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
or supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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FEMBHERMEE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(IRBEZEEBRN G IRAIAEH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—FTENFF-A=1+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

13. EFEREFEME » 13. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
I% 7ef-
RUER BFEF
ne Htigl ARIER ot
Salaries,
BE"ZZILF bonuses,  Retirement
+ZA=+—-HLEE allowances benefit
For the year ended and other scheme
31st December 2005 Fees benefits contributions Total
AREFTT AREFT ARETRT ARKEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITEZE Executive directors
BinR kAt Mr. He Duanshi — 180 9 189
BERAE (Ht1) Mr. Lu Shengmin (Note 1) — 108 6 114
S EEE Mr. Liu Congde — 144 9 153
FER+ Ms. Guo Qin — 144 9 153
TR 4 (Hf7t2) Mr. Zhao Songguo (Note 2) — = = —
Bk ki (Hat2) Mr. Ma Yong (Note 2) — — — —
BUEMIES Independent non-executive directors
HRk & (f1:F3) Mr. Xiao Yu (Note 3) — 50 — 50
BERLE Mr. Dai Qingjun — 50 — 50
BmLaE Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen = 50 — 50
HELE (F1:23) Mr. Sun Hua (Note 3) - 50 — 50
REIELE (H:2) Mr. Xu Guojun (Note 2) — — = =
HHRREE (Hi2) Mr. Sun Minggao (Note 2) = = = =
EF Supervisors
BRELLE Mr. Lii Zhongde — 50 9 59
& AIESL A Mr. Zhang Yueshun — 20 — 20
[(Frybitad Mr. Tao Zhichao — 20 — 20
=ER%E (fisFd) Mr. Gao Qinggang (Note 4) - 108 9 117
BB LT (f:33) Ms. Zhai Lumin (Note 3) — = = =
TRREE (fiat2) Mr. Yu Gongfu (Note 2) — = — —
Ex Total — 974 51 1,025
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14.

FEMBEREE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEEEBIRNZ G5 R A H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE-ZZNF+-A=+—HIUFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

EEREFME » 13. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Kt - Notes:

1. RZZEZRFNAZTNBHEAFE 1. Removed from the office of directors of the Company on 26th August
FRH 2005.

2. R-ZEERF+_A-t+_REZ 2. Appointed on 22nd December 2005.
£

3. RZZETRF+ A+ _HEE- 3. Resigned on 22nd December 2005.

4. REZZTRFT-A- T AMEHR 4. Resigned as executive director and appointed as supervisor on 22nd
TEEREZERES  —TTAHF December 2005, the above paid emoluments was executive directors’
EMEMEARTESHE - emoluments.

EEM& 14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

FA - BuZSFMALTEFEEA Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the

ES(CZETRTF MUES) - H Group, four (2005: two) were directors, whose emoluments

& FFBEERMIEE13 - Etg—f (= are set out in note 13 above. The emoluments of the remaining

TERF : =) = E AL Z B one (2005: three) highest paid individual was as follows:

ST

—ETRE —ZEERF
2006 2005
AR#TT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
T& - JE4L « 2Bh Salaries, bonuses, allowances
K H i 48 A and other benefits 180 465
R ORAE FFT B K Retirement benefit scheme contributions 11 28
191 493
HMe BN FIUNTHE : Their emoluments were within the following band:
EE®A
Number of employees
—ETRE —ZEERF
2006 2005
=2 AR¥1,000,000 Nil to RMB1,000,000 1 3
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FEMBHERMEE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(IRBEZEEBRN G IRAIAEH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—FTENFF-A=1+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

15. Bl 15. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW
ARETF T
RMB’000
JR1E COST
RZETRF—HA—H At 1st January 2005 5,000
Yl Addition 1,550
RZZEZTRF+_A=1+—H At 31st December 2005 and 31st December 2006 6,550
RZZZX
+=ZA=+—8

B AMORTISATION
RZETRF—H—H At 1st January 2005 1,560
N B Charge for the year 808
R-_ZTZTRF+—-H=+—H At 31st December 2005 2,368
PN Charge for the year 1,130
RZZTRF+-_A=+—H At 31st December 2006 3,498
FREE CARRYING VALUES
RZZTZERF+_H=+—H At 31st December 2006 3,052
R-ZEZERF+_-H=+—H At 31st December 2005 4,182
NEBNRMBE=FEA o HilT The Group’s technical know-how were acquired from third
IRH A {E A ERAE 6 EHA LA H 470k parties. The technical know-how have definite useful lives
#Ey o and amortised on a straight-line basis over four to six years.

W R O OE R &R AR QS F
1 22 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




e MBEHE=EMIE =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

16. Y%K - BE R 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RE BE
BENY R R RE gt
Plant,
machinery
and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
AREFTT AREFTT AREFEL AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BB VALUATION
RZEZRFE—A—H At 1st January 2005 330,611 845,902 17,592 1,194,105
MEZTREA (f/7£17)  Transferred from construction-
in-progress (note 17) 82,327 96,327 — 178,654
AE Additions 288 29,301 762 30,351
HEHBAR Disposal of a subsidiary — (208) — (208)
HE Disposals (11,090) (12,402) (4,885) (28,377)
RZEERE+ZR
=+—H At 31st December 2005 402,136 958,920 13,469 1,374,525
MERETREA (ffz£17)  Transferred from construction-
in-progress (note 17) 24,158 21,244 — 45,402
NE Additions 800 27,145 3,124 31,069
BENHBAFLE Reclassified as held for sale (8,329) - — (8,329)
HE Disposals — (42,746) (3,655) (46,401)
RZEERF+ZR At 31st December 2006 418,765 964,563 12,938 1,396,266
=t+—8
2EME ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
R-ZZRF—F—H At 1st January 2005 123,715 358,909 11,287 493,911
AFEERE Charge for the year 15,684 76,916 2,216 94,816
L EH B A Disposal of a subsidiary = (72) — (72)
HE 2 Hi Eliminated on disposals (10,269) (11,829) (4,864) (26,962)
RZETRF+_A At 31st December 2005 129,130 423,924 8,639 561,693
=t+—8
AEEHE Charge for the year 15,520 82,183 1,958 99,661
ENHBAFLE Reclassified as held for sale (4,338) - — (4,338)
HE 2 HiH Eliminated on disposals - (36,806) (3,260) (40,066)
RZETRF At 31st December 2006 140,312 469,301 7,337 616,950
+-A=+—H
EFAE CARRYING VALUES
RZEERF+=R At 31st December 2006 278,453 495,262 5,601 779,316
=t+—8
R_ZEERE+_A At 31st December 2005 273,006 534,996 4,830 812,832
=t+—8
m%%ﬁiﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂl
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e MBEE=EMIE 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZEETRAAR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE_TENFT_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

16. V¥  BERRG =)

(a) AEEMAREVERS
B -

(b) HBEEXRABNHRERER
BT bt RDTFWYE - B
ERZEEER—ANESF
+ = A=+—B & FEEM
(HER L R T AN =I5 AT iR
MEEEXAMEEEMR
B - HEARRINME - K
BREFEHER—HLNLNFNA
—+HB—BI(EHER - £
ERIFHER T AR R FHR AR
MEEFGE - MEEGHE
BEIREEHEE —TTAE
+-A=t+—BUFEHEM
mIrTEBAAARE
422,0007T (ZZEZHF : A
R #432,0007T) °

() MWAKRBEZME  BEK&R

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

All the buildings of the Group are located in the PRC.

In the preparation of the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company’s
property, plant and equipment were firstly revalued as
at 31st December 1995 by Shandong Certified Public
Accountants, a firm of valuers registered in the PRC
on a depreciated replacement cost basis as part of its
restructuring. Another separate revaluation was carried
out on the Company’s property, plant and equipment
as at 30th September 1996, by Chesterton Petty
Limited, an independent valuer, on an open market
value basis. The adoption of the above two revaluations
in the accounts has resulted in an additional
depreciation charge of RMB422,000 (2005:
RMB432,000) in respect of the year ended 31st
December 2006.

Had the property, plant and equipment of the Group

B ARBERRFTITE A been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
I ZEEEZEREERS the carrying value of such property, plant and
RIA A equipment in the accounts would have been
approximately:

—EERE —EERF

2006 2005

AR#TFTT ARETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

Y Buildings 275,862 270,281
5 - Hes R Plant, machinery and equipment 493,921 533,385
RE Motor vehicles 5,115 4,344
774,898 808,010

W R ¥ 2 R ER O BR 2 F
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e MBEHE=EMIE =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

16. V¥  BERERE &)

(d)

E’\_??/\¢+ A=1—

C ARBEZFABEYME W
J%& RIEHBHARREFR
FTEEERAEEERE -
BHREREER-_FTNF
T A=t—HRZEEEYL
BEAER Z?»"&ﬂ%%?fb
RBUE  BERRBER=-F
ERFTZRA=+—HZEK
HEEEATHREERE
B2 AR EHEE -

BE—FENFF_A=1+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(d)

At 31st December 2006, all property, plant and
equipment of the Group were revalued by the directors
of the Company on a depreciated replacement cost
basis. Since there are no material differences between
the revalued amount and the carrying values at 31st
December 2006, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment at 31st December 2006 fairly reflected
their recoverable amount at that time.

LA EWZ - BB RRE 2T The above items of property, plant and equipment are
ERERERIR - WE - W depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated
BRFENTEAFEN useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are
K as follows:
Y 20 F Buildings 20 years
[R5 - e R 5-10F Plant, machinery and equipment 5-10 years
qE 5 F Motor vehicles 5 years
17. #2818 17. CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS
—ETREF —ETRHF
2006 2005
AR#TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Rn—A—H At 1st January 90,168 221,164
=Yl Additions 41,156 79,400
EAYE  HE &R Transfer to property, plant
(Hizt16) and equipment (note 16) (45,402) (178,654)
EETMEREZ Transfer to prepaid lease payments
FEMEERE on land use rights — (27,595)
HE Disposal — (4,147)
R+=—A=+—8H At 31st December 85,922 90,168
R OFOE R R ©00F R A A
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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FEMBHERMEE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIE &8 B R A2 & a1 R R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TENF+ A=+ HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

17. ERIE » 17. CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS (continued)
ERIRBERZZEZEF+TA= Construction-in-progress comprises expenditures incurred
+— B IEEEE M RIGEREE on buildings, plants and machinery not yet commissioned at
Y BB RSB BB LN 31st December 2006. For the years ended 31st December
Y RZEEXNF+_A=+—H 2006 and 2005, no loans were borrowed for financing
R-ZZZERFEANTRZEANTE construction-in-progress.

TREMER -

FTEIRBEBENARPELERS Included in construction-in-progress, an amount of
MEMR TG REZFTEARE RMB1,940,000 (2005: RMB2,641,000) represents prepayment
1,940,000 (ZEZRHF : AREE for purchase of land use rights in Zibo, Shandong, the PRC.

2,641,0007T) °©

18. Ti{EFHEZCHAMNEER 18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND

-] USE RIGHTS
—ETRE —ZTTRF
2006 2005
AR®FTT AR FIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBMBMNBEERERIE ©  The Group’s prepaid lease
payments comprise:
RE ST H Leasehold land in PRC:
R Hf Medium-term lease 87,161 89,639
% HA Short lease 1,662 1,817
88,823 91,456
MIEMIEL 2O ©  Analysed for reporting purposes as:
mEh & E Current assets 2,419 2,471
EMBNEE Non-current assets 86,404 88,985
88,823 91,456

W R O OE R/ E R @B R & F
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18.

19.

e MBEHE=EMIE =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

TiERECHEMEER 18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND
8 &) USE RIGHTS (continued)
AREEDNEHEZ T fE AR - The Group has acquired land use rights in the PRC and has
WERTH FEEETF - KEEE erected buildings thereon. While the Group has paid
XNZBEREB RO RE - M substantially the full consideration of the purchase
REBNHAFEBETHERNSE T consideration, the relevant government authorities have not
ZETMERERALEHEXE granted formal title to certain of these land use rights to the
o R BEERNE+_A=+— Group. As at 31st December 2006, the carrying values of the
H AEBRAREREXMAEZ land use rights for which the Group had not been granted
THEEERFEOA/RARK formal title amounted to approximately RMB30,385,000 (2005:
30,385,000C (ZEZERF : HAR approximately RMB31,213,000). In the opinion of the directors
#31,213,0007T) - "ARIEER of the Company, the absence of formal title to these land use
" AEEERALTHMEREEED rights does not impair the value of the relevant land use
FERERBEZS TiER 2 ER rights to the Group. The directors of the Company also
FIEREMmMB L o AR AEEE I8 believe that formal title to these land use rights will be
5 ' RE LR 2 EX A # Al granted to the Group in due course.
iSRS B o
BEAFHED 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
—ETRE —ZTTRF
2006 2005
AR#TFTT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIE LT E QR Cost of investment in
& Z KA associates, unlisted 47,831 34,831
EERIRE A a WBE%R 2 Share of post-acquisition
B8 R losses and reserves (5,251) (4,552)
42,580 30,279
b RO OE R E R BB R QA
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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e MBEE=EMIE 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZEETRAAR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TENFT_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

19. BiEATHER ) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

RZBEZERF+A=+—HZH The details of the associates as at 31st December 2006 are

128

VNG N as follows:
BERBIERR SEMRE
RELATER AFRE B fr 55 EEMA HEMEXHE ERER IERBRETHR
Place of Nominal Percentage
Form of incorporation value of of equity
business Class of and kind of registered attributable  Principal activities
Name of associate structure shares held legal entity capital  to the Group  and place of operation
WEFE — BNRRE £E BARK hE AR %516,000,000 50% RAREIEEENR
BRELEAR BEAR (hix 1)  BEAM
[#% — A&l
SINO-USA Zibo Incorporated ~ Contributed PRC, limited ~ USD6,000,000 50%  Production of medicine
Xinhua-Perrigo capital company (Note 1) and medical products
Pharmaceutical in the PRC
Company Limited
(“Xinhua-Perrigo”)
IWRHER LT %8 BARE E AR AR%25,000,000 40% RPEEER
BRAR BfEAH HELIER
Shandong Xinhua Incorporated ~ Contributed PRC, limited RMB25,000,000 40%  Manufacture and sales
Longxin Chemical capital company of chemical products
Co., Ltd. in the PRC
WRAMIELE =B BARK mE - AR AK%26,000,000 49% RAPBEEER
BRAR Rz BART (Bt 2)  HELIEM
WERAMIEL S Incorporated  Contributed PRC, limited RMB26,000,000 49%  Production and sale
BR AR ([Ri3E]) capital company (Note 2)  of chemical products
in the PRC
IWRHERE(LT =8 BARE E AR AR%22,000,000 35% RPBEEER
REARDA BEART HE TR REMN
LWEHERENRT Incorporated ~ Contributed PRC, limited RMB22,000,000 35%  Production and sale
HEBRAA capital company of chemical
equipments and spare

parts in the PRC

W R ¥ 2 R ER O BR 2 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

19. BRELAFER @) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Hifat - Notes:

1. E - BFERAAREEEA A 1. Xinhua-Perrigo is a joint venture between the Company and Perrigo
BERARKRBERZAEAR - & International, Inc for the production of medicine and medical products
FEXEB RN T EAEEEEY RELER in the PRC. The registered capital and paid-up capital of the joint
W ZEERRZAMRBMRERS venture is USD6,000,000, of which the Company contributed
6,000,000 7T * R AREE T AR USD3,000,000 for its 50% share. The directors of the Company
7%3,000,0003% 7T * & ALK ARHE © regard the joint venture as an associate as the Company only
AARREEHZEE AR Z BEITHE exercises significant influence in its management.

BAZHEN  RARERRRZE
BARDBEAT -

2. A EIMERSARKE 2. The registered capital of At ¥ % is RMB26,000,000, the Company
26,000,0007T ' R_ZTZE R F+ = has paid-up RMB5,300,000 as at 31st December 2006, the remaining
A=+—H ' ARREHEARYK of RMB7,440,000 will be paid up in 2007.
5,300,0007T ' # [~ AR#7,440,000
TR =TT +FH o

REEE SRR 2 REEFTHBE The summarised unaudited financial information in respect

BEEZ25|0T - of the Group’s associates is set out below:

—ETRE —EETREF
2006 2005
AR¥TT ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BEMAE Total assets 143,644 91,783

BfEER Total liabilities (48,457) (25,832)

BEFE Net assets 95,187 65,951

REBEGE=ZA Group’s share of net assets

BEFE of associates 42,580 30,279

S Turnover 100,606 20,471

FREE Loss for the year (1,564) (5,131)

REBEGHEARZ Group’s share of results of

FRNEE associates for the year (699) (2,732)

W R E R ER O BR 2 F
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e MBEE=EMIE 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(IREE

(PF?EPAHED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—FENFF _A=1+—HIFE

B B BRI & &R R AR 1)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

20. BELAFIER 20. LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE
—ZETRE —ZETRF
2006 2005
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R NEINEE Loan to an associate 6,921 6,921
MM EREEMIEL 2 Carrying amount analysed for
SHAT reporting purposes:
mENE E (BT Current assets (receivable within
RELEBR+T @S 12 months from the balance
wusmE) (ffat2e) sheet date) (note 26) 6,921 2,481
FERBEE (BERA Non-current assets (receivable
RELHRBRT @A after 12 months from the
& 4zm) balance sheet date) — 4,440
6,921 6,921
HWERAERXRTFHE—AINSA The amount represents loan advanced to an associate,

A ﬁﬁa RIBEEE - A BRI
FEGFTHE - 49 AR#2,481,0007T7
—EEXFEARE KR RRF

Xinhua-Perrigo. The amount is unsecured, carries interest at
prevailing market rates. Other than the amount of
RMB2,481,000 was repayable in July 2006 and is extended

= E%'JI—JJEHJ%E_ T F— to January 2007, the remaining amounts was repayable in
A BTEFRZZEZLFAE June 2007 and is extended to November 2007. In the opinion

B AR Tﬁ%ﬁﬁé BAEAER
HEME_ZFTTLE+—H AR
RIESERA  BERRBERNELR
Elzﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁiﬁhﬁﬁ%ﬂ,uj i
HRRERENAFEBREE

of the directors of the Company, the fair value of the loan to
an associate at the balance sheet date, determined based
on the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted
using the prevailing market rate at the balance sheet date,
approximated to its carrying amount.

W R ¥ 2 R ER O BR 2 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEEEBIRNZ G5 R A H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE-ZZNF+-A=+—HIUFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

21. nfEHEZRSE 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
REZZEERF+ZA=+T—HHTA Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December 2006
HEERENAT : comprise:

—EETRE —ZEZTARF
2006 2005
AR%TFTT ARSF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FELETRE : Unlisted securities:
— BAES — equity securities 53,777 53,777
— BEEFRETFEFN*X581% — debt securities with fixed
(ZZZRHF : 5.27%) interest of 5.81% (2005: 5.27%)
ERZZEELEFELA and maturity date in July 2007
2 5 (ff ata) (note a) 117,000 117,000
o BEERREEE Less: Impairment loss recognised
(Ft 2b) (note b) (30,000) (30,000)
Gk Total 140,777 140,777
MEBEMEL ZDMBAT - Analysed for reporting purposes as:
—EERE —ZTTHF
2006 2005
AR¥FTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEEE Current assets 117,000 =
EREEE Non-current assets 23,777 140,777
140,777 140,777

m%%ﬁiﬁéﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂl
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 131




132

e MBEE=EMIE 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZEETRAAR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE_TENFT_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

21. MHHEZRE @) 21.

AERER/IELHHBEBRAERE -
BMRMEE LA 3E ERIRERE QT
ERATEEEZRRAZLEE
B ARREERRARER S
BEATE  BHZFRENEF
ERRRAHBRREAR

Krat -

E-TTNFLA  AEEREAR
¥AIBTANES BRETRESR
BRAR ([E58W]) ARG ERE
BFRABRAR (EEAR]) WE—K
T R BB A 7 B B R )1 R T R N Y
RRAEWIEEE St ESrtEl - mEA
AlAGE SRR R ER S S8 iR
ZHEEH  ASERESSEHES
ENREEABEERALR - M kil
LR REEEREENETERSM
izk o ZfstE S B BH=F
FEBERKRERNECHS5.81% (ZF
THEF : 5.27%) - EBEHER=
ZEREBEAESARYE
13,000,000 FALE ©

(@)

R-ZEEXRFE+-_A=+—H " A7
RARRAZHFEREEAR (—KIE
EWEREEFR A ZIRER S KA
8 AR #30,000,0007T ° %2 al1E
EERM R EH - BB ERREREE
AR #30,000,000C (ZEZTHF :
AR ¥30,000,0007T) ° ARG EE
RE - ZRETIEESEMBRI R
FHRHRAIERERIEE REGBRT
e o

(b)

W R ¥ E R E R O F R B
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

The above unlisted investments represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost less
impairment at each balance sheet date because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

Notes:

(@)

(b)

In July 2004, the Group invested RMB130,000,000 in an equity
acquisition trust fund plan organised by Qingdao Hisyn Trust &
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Hisyn”) for Shenzhen Hengye
Investment Development Co., Ltd. (“‘Hengye Company”) to acquire
equity interests in a company engaging in pharmaceutical
manufacturing business in the PRC. Under the arrangement, Hengye
Company undertakes to pledge the equity interests acquired to
Qingdao Hisyn in full amount. The Group agrees that Qingdao Hisyn
uses the above equity interests so pledged to repay the trust fund
principal and interest to the Group in the event that Hengye Company
was in default of repayment. The trust fund plan is for a term of three
years and the return to the Group is at a rate of 5.81% (2005: 5.27%)
per annum on the investment amount. Qingdao Hisyn has repaid
RMB13,000,000 principal to the Group during the year ended 31st
December 2005.

As at 31st December 2006, the Group held an investment in Tian
Tong Securities Company Limited, an unlisted securities trading
company, at a cost of RMB30,000,000. The securities trading company
is facing financial difficulties and impairment loss of RMB30,000,000
(2005: RMB30,000,000) had been recognised. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the impairment is made based on
their best estimation with reference to the market situation and
circumstances of the securities trading company.



FEMBEREE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEEEBIRNZ G5 R A H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE-ZZNF+-A=+—HIUFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

22.

23.

R 22. INVENTORIES
—ZENRE —EERF
2006 2005
AR¥FTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R A Raw materials 31,458 49,439
R Work-in-progress 67,456 92,973
EEPX i Finished goods 112,118 120,930
FEA @ Consumables 13,324 11,423
224,356 274,765

VART B35 3B 51 Bk 2 AR B EK fn
HERE B & H A K #21,549,0007T

—EETRF  AR¥8,531,000 realisable value.

Included in the above were finished goods of approximately
RMB21,549,000 (2005: RMB8,531,000) carried at net

JC) ©
YR R R 23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
—ETXE —ETRE
2006 2005
AR#FIT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUTBR TR R =R Trade and bills receivables 246,190 292,491
W RIEBRREIR Less: Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts (12,691) (10,770)
233,499 281,721

m%%ﬁiﬁéﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂl
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FEMBHERMEE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIE &8 B R A2 & a1 R R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TENF+ A=+ HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

23. BEWIEFRERRE 2 23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)
R-_ZEEF+_A=1+—H & At 31st December 2006, the ageing analysis of the trade and
WERR K Z & (BEHREE) 1 iREe bills receivables, net of allowance is as follows:
DT
—ETREF —ZTTRHF
2006 2005
AR¥TFTT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FELAA Within one year 186,017 262,759
ZHN—F{BDPPRME  More than one year but less than two years 39,584 15,247
ZIRMFEELR=F More than two years but less than three years 7,898 3,715
233,499 281,721
AEEZHAHEE 2 EEFHUE The Group’s turnover from export sales is on letter of credit
ARSI RRXEFRETHE o & or documents against payment. The remaining balances of
¥R HtmARIIRTZRR SR turnover are on open account terms which are partially
ET - HR AP 2ERER covered by customers’ stand-by letter of credit or bank
FBHIRITERIERE o guarantees.
REFER  NEBZEWEFREE The fair value of the Group’s trade and bills receivables at
Bz AV EERBZEEAERS the balance sheet date approximated to the carrying amount.

24, HttFEBRERESR H 24. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS/

ft BE {5 &% OTHER PAYABLES
REHELH RSB 2AFEER The fair values of the amounts at the balance sheet date
HZBREEMS ° approximated to the corresponding carrying amounts.

W R O OE R/ E R @B R & F
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26.

e MBEHE=EMIE =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

Bl EEZEREAFTRIA 25. AMOUNT DUE FROM IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY
FEM B B R A R SR 2 R The amount due from immediate holding company is
BB -R_BEENF+_A=+— unsecured and interest-free. As at 31st December 2006, the
B FRIBEAREKEEE - RZT amount is repayable on demand. As at 31st December 2005,
TRFE+ZA=1+—H BARK other than an amount of approximately RMB9,507,000 will
9,507,000 R = Z T RENAE be repaid in September 2006, the remaining amounts were
B BRBEAREREEE RZE repayable on demand. Out of the total balance at 31st
ERE+-_A=1+—H HEHRBE December 2006, approximately RMB46,874,000 (2005:
BIEE 5B AR 46,874,000 RMB28,991,000) was trading in nature. The immediate holding
T (ZETRF: AR¥28,991,000 company has undertaken to settle and receive all amounts
TL) ° EEERATEEEERNRE due to and due from the fellow subsidiaries. As at 31st
[5] F& 45 K & A~ [R) 4R B /B8 & RIFRIA © December 2006, the amount due from immediate holding
RZZEZEXRFTA=+T—H " & company represents the net balance due from and to the
W B B2 12 AR A B RIR T HE W K FE A immediate holding company and the fellow subsidiaries.
EEERARRRASMBRARZF
o
RRREERA  BREEZERA In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
AIFIERFLA R 2 REEEEET of the amount due from immediate holding company at the
BHEFEZREREeRENAT balance sheet date, determined based on the present value
BEMAS - of the estimated cash flows discounted using the prevailing
market rate at the balance sheet date, approximated to its
carrying amount.
B E ARRE 26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
—ETRE —ETRHF
2006 2005
AR¥TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
i NI E Amounts due from associates 12,940 554
E N ERRN—FA Loan to an associate
S 88 (K7t 20) — due within one year (note 20) 6,921 2,481
19,861 3,035

FEUEE 2 R RIFUAREEN - 28
RARERFEERE - REHLH - &
S Bz U S N RIRIEZ AFE
HARE(ERE -

Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The fair value of the amounts due
from associates at the balance sheet date approximated to
the carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIE &8 B R A2 & a1 R R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TENF+ A=+ HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

27. BITRARERRELRER 27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

RIR N6 B B IR 1T 35 5] M RTT AR A7 The amount represents deposits pledged to bank to secure
A REZREALER @ ANATEHF short-term banking facilities granted to the Group in respect
AEMRTALEEZTREDNSEN of bills and letter of credit facilities and are therefore classified
30%EMABIEITREFEARITA L as current assets. In accordance with the facilities agreements,
EEREL  WEAHLEZHRE the Group is required to place deposits, which is amounted
H > AUIRITEAHEZSRES - 9 to 30% of the face value of the issued bills to the banks. The
HANRBEE - ZERIJFARZ deposits carry fixed interest rate of 2.07% (2005: 2.07%) per
BEMERFEEE2.07% (ZZTZhH annum. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
F:2.07%) ° RITELREFS - # settlement of relevant bank borrowings. The fair value of
RAEARITEREERRD - RE bank deposits at the balance sheet date approximated to the
#H - ZREBESFEARZIATFEER carrying amount.
FREERE
28. fTE€mI R 28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—ETRE —TTRF
2006 2005
AR#TFTT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
et TaEmELA Derivative not under hedge accounting:
RESNESE DN 2 AT E Fair value of foreign currency
forward contracts 134 84

R O3 O E 2 & KR B R A =
136 P
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29.

e MBEHE=EMIE =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

fTE€MmT A »®

AREERI VAR T REMN 2R
BH  R_FEANF+F_A=1+—
AERB AN ERENZER
T

£ 34 ]

Notional amount

R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
The Group had entered into forward contracts denominated
in United States Dollar (“USD”). The major terms of the
foreign currency forward contracts outstanding at 31st
December 2006 are as follows:

BMA 2

Maturity Exchange rates

i 52,000,000 7T
Sell USD2,000,000
i 2,000,000 7T
Sell USD2,000,000
Ji & 3,000,0003< 7T
Sell USD3,000,000
Ji & 3,000,0003< 7T
Sell USD3,000,000
4 & 3,000,0003 70
Sell USD3,000,000
4 & 3,000,0003 7T
Sell USD3,000,000
i 8,000,000 7T
Sell USD3,000,000

—2FRtF—A+-H
11th January 2007
“ET+F—A+HA
15th January 2007
—ET+EF-RA+HA
15th February 2007

—EEHF=HA_-+KAH

26th March 2007

0.1276E L 1A R
USDO0.1276 to RMB1
0.1279E L 1A R
USD0.1279 to RMB1
0.1282F L H1ARM
USD0.1282 to RMB1
0.1291FE L HIARY
USDO0.1291 to RMB1

—EELFNHA=—+NH
26th April 2007
—EE+FRATAH
25th May 2007
—EELFANAZFRH
26th June 2007

0.1294% L H 1A R
USDO0.1294 to RMB1
0.1296% L 71 AR
USDO0.1296 to RMB1
0.1299% L 71 AR #E
USDO0.1299 to RMB1

BRITAETARSEFERRAFE
AE - EAFEDRASIARR
CREBEMBCHEETE -

BITERE A KER

BOIERERCEHBREROTRE
R BHEUR=@EAsKATAEH
TR RERITERELEARK
10,000,0007C (Z T FHF : )1
ElEFHRAE1.62%%2.07% (—Z
TRE : E) o

REFER  ZFLHEIAFERRF
2 REERS -

29.

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at each
balance sheet date, determined based on the quoted prices
from financial institutions for equivalent instruments.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprises bank balances and cash
held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with maturity
of three months or less which are interest-bearing at prevailing
market rates. The short-term bank deposits of RMB10,000,000
(2005: Nil) carry fixed interest rates ranged from 1.62% to
2.07% per annum (2005: Nil).

The fair values of the amounts at the balance sheet date
approximated to the corresponding carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZEETRAAR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE_TENFT_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

30. FHBEZHE

AEBCEHEEEHE —ERE
MR LERE - ZATLEEYR
AEBEZEF KM BARIESM
NR% - AKBERILSKAEE
R HBE_TTERNF+_A=1—
B BREECHEZMBIER
BEHKEAEREFE - Hit - A
TR ENEERE R
MESBEFHEZEER T4
HRBEEE -

31. BEFERERE

RZZEZERF+_A=+—0H &
NEARZENRES AT :

30.

31.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

The Group has a committed plan to dispose of prepaid lease
payments on land use rights and buildings erected thereon,
which was previously used as an office premise for one of
the Company’s subsidiary, were no longer utilised. A search
is underway for a buyer. The net proceeds of disposal are
expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant
assets, therefore no impairment loss was recognised on
reclassification of the prepaid lease payments on land use
rights and buildings as assets held for sale as at 31st
December 2006.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

At 31st December 2006, the ageing analysis of the trade and
bills payables is as follows:

—EERE —ETREF

2006 2005

AR¥TFT ARKFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FE PR Within one year 198,906 340,858
ZHA—FELRME  More than one year but less than two years 10,388 1,038
ZHMEEDLR=F More than two years but less than three years 428 412
BE=F Over three years 3,358 3,312
213,080 345,620

REHR  AEEZENERRRE
Bz AVEERBAZREERSE o

FE {1 Bk B X B R IR

JE A< Bt
KRB RE

32.

NERBEREERR 28

REFER  BNBERRFEAZRA
FEAEREERS

W R ¥ E R E R O F R

32.

=
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

The fair value of the Group’s trade and bills payables at the
balance sheet date approximated to the carrying amount.

AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free
and was fully settled.

The fair value of the amount due to an associate at the
balance sheet date approximated to the carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BIEHEARITER

R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

33. UNSECURED SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS

—ETRE —ETREF
2006 2005
ABR#TiT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR 2 RITE Unsecured bank loans due
R—F AN EH within one year 235,234 418,969

A ESBRMIGHMEGTE -

R-ZZEEXE+_A=+—8H &
TERBIELHARE185,000,0007C
ZERZEEFHNE5.508% %
5.580%xT 2 © #R NERTTERALZ
E)FF|E5.29%%5.98%:T & °

RZETRFE+_A=+—H 'R
TERFH AR KE220,000,0007T 2
BEIREERETE  ERARK
20,000,000 7T LA 5 7| £ 5.58 %1 &
N AR #200,000,0007T JA £ Al &
3.78%:T B ° 82 NIRTTE A S 2
) F R 1.76%25.70%:t & °

AEEUNEHEERRZINEEE
N2 BHEFIR 2 BRI ¢

The above amounts bear interest at prevailing market rates.

At 31st December 2006, bank loans include approximately
RMB185,000,000 fixed-rate borrowings which carry interest
at 5.508% to 5.580% per annum. The remaining bank loans
are floating-rate borrowings which carry interest ranging from
5.29% to 5.98% per annum.

At 31st December 2005, bank loans included approximately
RMB220,000,000 fixed-rate borrowings, of which
RMB20,000,000 carried interest at 5.58% per annum and
RMB200,000,000 carried interest at 3.78% per annum. The
remaining bank loans were floating-rate borrowings which
carried interest ranging from 1.76% to 5.70% per annum.

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

ERXTTTR EBETT

Hong Kong

USD Dollars

‘000 ‘000

RZZTZERFE+-_A=+—H  As at 31st December 2006 — 50,000
R-ZTZERF+-_A=+—H  As at 31st December 2005 18,210 50,000

R-BEXE+-_A=+—80 &
EEESTHEERSEAARKE
323,011,0007C (CZEZRF : AR
487,989,0007T) ° B RILM5FIEET
BIBR_ZSLFEEEE -

ARBEERRNFHEBRITER
ZEmEREAFERS -

During the year ended 31st December 2006, the Group
obtained new loans in the amount of approximately
RMB323,011,000 (2005: RMB487,989,000). These loans
carry interest at prevailing market rates and will be repayable
in 2007.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the bank loans at the balance sheet date
approximated to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIE &8 B R A2 & a1 R R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TENNF+-_A=1+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

34. BB&E 34. SHARE CAPITAL
—EZTRE ZE5hE
2006 2005
BTRRAWEF T& ARBTTL i AREFT
Number Number
Issued and fully paid: of shares of shares
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
BEERABRAEBARYIT  State-owned shares of RMB1 each
w—A—H At 1st January 214,440 214,440 214,440 214,440
RS ERERD (HizE1) Decrease as a result of
Revised Share Reform (note 1) (26,654) (26,654 ) — —
BEEARD (Hi2) Transfer to PRC legal
person shares (note 2) (24,527) (24,527) = =
Rt+=R=+-H At 31st December 163,259 163,259 214,440 214,440
BEEABRBREBEARRIT Promoters’ shares of RMB1 each
W=A—BRT-A=t—H At 1st January and 31st December 16,720 16,720 16,720 16,720
EARBREEARRIT PRC legal person shares
of RMB1 each
iz = At 1st January = = — =
HEBROEA (F:2) Transfer from state-owned
shares (note 2) 24,527 24,527 = =
R+=A=1+—-AH At 31st December 24,527 24,527 - -
BEERREREEARYIT  Senior management shares
of RMB1 each
R—A—H At 1st January 44 44 44 44
RENEHRER Net decrease as a result of
BERERTHS Revised Share Reform and
resign of senior management (5) (5) — —
RtZA=+-H At 31st December 39 39 44 44

W RO OE ®H E R HOE R 24 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

R _TENF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

“BIRE ZE5hE
2006 2005
RITREKES Ti ABBTT TR ARETx
Number Number
Issued and fully paid: of shares of shares
"000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
ARSI (TAR]) RMB ordinary shares (A Shares)
BREEARRIT of RMB1 each
»—A—H At 1st January 76,109 76,109 76,109 76,109
RENEHERDERR Net increase as a result of
FEM (Fizt1) Revised Share Reform and resign
of senior management (note 1) 26,659 26,659 = =
Rt-A=+-H At 31st December 102,768 102,768 76,109 76,109
b L e b B ([ HER]) Overseas listed foreign invested
SREEARRIT shares (H Shares) of RMB1 each
W—A—BR+ZA=1+—H At 1st January and 31st December 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
457,313 457,313 457,313 457,313

Hfet

1. BIEAARBREDENRESR + s

RABEIBARMR RS - AR
REIZ EEERAT - ARED B
B REMHMREE G BB LML
A R BARRAR R & 10 AT AR 1
RS SIREIE LB o FEEBEATE R
11126,653,665[% IR R1E R E S AR
TSR RN - BLERMDRE S
ERE MR =5 RS o

2. REZFZEXRF+—A=1++H A2 2.
RAIEBIFTERBEEMN - HEANAA
AIRMDIERARE - RIARERE
o bl hERERENAR KRG
WRAHE « APAREREH 2R
FERELHEA ST REWE AR
RE=ZFFEMETHSELTHE
BENBERMBEERRAEBRLER
HWEBAR (MRIEAR B RARTZ
MiEAR) WEBAUSD - Bt - FEE
B AN Bl 4851 24,527,0008% A%
DELWAVEHE RS - EBEE
BEHNARRIRDBHCHBEATHN
187,786,000/% (15 24~ 2 A 42 iR 7 89
41.06%) Ji > A8 F 1% 19 163,259,000
& (58 A B148 R AN H) 35.70%) °

Notes :

In accordance with the revised share reform of the Company for the
conversion of non-tradable A shares to tradable A shares (“Revised
Share Reform”), the holder of the non-tradable A shares, SXPGC,
which was also an immediate holding company of the Company,
offered as consideration, 3.5 shares of non-tradable A shares of the
Company for every 10 tradable A shares held by A share shareholders
as registered on the registration date in respect of the implementation
of the Revised Share Reform . Upon the completion of the reform,
SXPGC offered 26,653,665 non-tradable A shares as condition to
have trading right in the A share market. These shares rank pari
passu in all respects with other shares in issue.

On 27th November 2006, the Company received a notice from
SXPGC that shares held by SXPGC in the Company have been
subject to judicial sale, judicial freezing and pledging. The said
judicial sale, judicial freezing and pledging of shares held by SXPGC
in the Company is due to various loans to SXPGC and guarantees
given by SXPGC for its own benefits and the benefits of its subsidiaries
and third parties, and financial disputes involving SXPGC and SXPGC
subsidiaries (but excluding the Company and its subsidiaries). As a
result, a total of 24,527,000 shares held by SXPGC in the Company
have been sold via judicial auction, and the total shares held by
SXPGC in the Company before and after the said sale has decreased
from 187,786,000 shares (representing 41.06% of the total share
capital of the Company) to 163,259,000 shares (representing 35.70%
of the total share capital of the Company).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIE &8 B R A2 & a1 R R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TENF+ A=+ HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

35. BIERRB 35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
—EZTRX —ZTTRF
2006 2005
AR®TFT ARKT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
n—H—H At 1st January 4,046 153
iR e BmRENR Charge to consolidated
(Ktzt8) income statement (note 8) 141 3,893
R+ZA=+—8H At 31st December 4,187 4,046
AEEBFNRELEHIE (BE) BEZ The movements in deferred tax (assets) liabilities of the
FEmT Group during the year are as follows:
BHER i Hth HEt
Accounting
provisions Tax losses Others Total
ZETRE —ITTHE ZEERE —TTHE IZEERE —TTHF ZEEXRE _—TTIH
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

ARBTE ARETT ARBFLT ARETT ARBFT ARXTL ARBTET ARETT
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000 ~ RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000

R=A—H
At 1st January 3,098 2,839 — (3,519) 948 833 4,046 153
REERAREEMR GEA)

Charge (credit) to consolidated

income statement for the year 263 259 — 3,519 (122) 115 141 3,893
R+=A=+—H
At 31st December 3,361 3,098 - — 826 948 4,187 4,046

36. HMITEE 36. BANKING FACILITIES

REBZRITEEHEBEARE The Group’s banking facilities of RMB300,000,000 (2005:
300,000,0007T (ZZZHF | AR RMB420,000,000) were guaranteed by the immediate holding
#£420,000,0007T) BB EEZER A R company. As at 31st December 2006, none of such banking
BR RZZEENEF+A=1— facilities were utilised by the Group (2005: RMB370,696,000).

B AEBREEEETEECE
THE . AR¥370,696,0007T) °

W R O OE R/ E R @B R & F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEEEBIRNZ G5 R A H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE-ZZNF+-A=+—HIUFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

HERE LT 37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
REZZEZERFWA=Z+=H ' &% On 22nd April 2005, the Group disposed of its entire interest
EiZ R (EAR116,0007T H SZ M in Dezhou Xinhua Tai Kang Drug Store Company Limited for
ERERNEEE#EZ ° a consideration of RMB116,000.
HETISE L EEFE ! Net assets disposed of:
2005
RMB’000
Wz - BB REE Property, plant and equipment 136
E A FE W 5K IE Other receivable 23
7E Inventory 433
RITERKREE Bank balance and cash 51
JE AT BR R Trade payables (67)
H i & < 508 Other payables (9)
DB R Minority interests (226)
341
HEZ B8 Loss on disposal (225)
RE Total consideration 116
WA Satisfied by:
Re XM Cash 116
HEMBARZERER Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
FREATAT
BURENRE Cash consideration 116
HEZRITHRERRS Bank balances and cash disposed of (51)
HEMNBARZEAS R Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
REFEWMRNFE in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary 65
BHE_ZEERE+_A=+—H1t The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended 31st
FEANHEZHNBRARHANERZ December 2005 had no significant impact on the Group’s
EXFERFERBEATE o turnover and results of the Group.

m%%ﬁiﬁéﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂl
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 143




e MBEE=EMIE 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZEETRAAR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TENFT_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

38. #*iE 38. COMMITMENTS

(a) BFKIE (a)

Capital commitments

144

(i) EETERYE - B
B R R ERIE

REHB - AEEX

(i)

Commitments for construction-in-progress and
property, plant and equipment

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the

ERAHEEEY A following capital commitments principally related
EXENEREIER to construction-in-progress and purchase of
BEDE  BERR property, plant and equipment in respect of
16 2 AR B i 2 AN 1 buildings and production facilities which were
EwT not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements.

—ZTRE “TEREF

2006 2005

ARTT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EE#)EAXREE Contracted but not provided 15,621 9,668

BHtfEEAREL  Authorised but not contracted for 143,270 133,300

158,891 142,968

(i)  EAfb#EE

REFNR BT RE
+=—A=+—H&E#
RIEE R — Bt & A A
49% R IERE 2 4E
RE A 2 AR MR
ZeBBARK
7,440,0007T ° It B
VNG eSS )
R B EEREEL
TE®FME19) -
—ETRF  E)

W R ¥ 2 R ER O BR 2 F
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(ii)

Other commitments

The Group had capital commitment contracted
but not provided for totalling RMB7,440,000 in
respect of investment in an associate with 49%
equity interest as at 31st December 2006. The
associate is engaged in production and sale of
chemical products in the PRC (Note 19) (2005:
Nil).



38. *&iE =)

(b)

EEARRR (b)
B B AT

AEBREKEHEOLEHM
ERETZERE - 2EWE
MBENZEERFRE—F
EREF -

REZR  AKEREAA
B EHOR TR A
Z R R SEENA AL

FEMBEREE «

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEEEBIRNZ G5 R A H)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BE-ZZNF+-A=+—HIUFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

38. COMMITMENTS (continued)

Commitments under operating leases

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its retail shops under
operating lease arrangements. Lease for properties
are negotiated for a term ranging from one to five

years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

T
—SEX —ZETRF
2006 2005
AR%TT ABR®TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 597 193
FE_EFERF In the second to fifth year inclusive 176 132
fF1& Over five years 81 8
854 888

W R E R ER O BR 2 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZEETRAAR )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TENFT_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

39. EREALTEZS 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) B ExFfi5E20,25,26 K% 32FT (a)
W REBEEMIESE
EGBENETZERNERH

Apart from those disclosed in notes 20, 25, 26 and 32
above, the other significant related party transactions,
which were carried out in the normal course of the

HEALTRSGWENT : Group’s business are as follows:
—ETRE —ZTTRF
2006 2005
AR®FTT AR FIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FhEEREE SXPGC:
— XA AR — Payment of annual trademark
(Ktat1) licence fee (Note 1) 1,000 200
— Hex i — Rental expense 500 —
— HBEWE - — Purchase of property,
VeSS ] plant and equipment 1,499 —
REMEAT : Fellow subsidiaries:
— HEKE R — Sale of water, electricity, steam
KR M and raw materials 13,160 19,170
— REREV R — Purchase of raw materials 72,293 65,208
— HE WA — Rental income 1,438 1,506
— X8 % — Payment of labour and other services — 143
K E A AR 75
BREAF : Associates:
— HEKENR — Sale of water, electricity and steam 6,766 367
— FERERME — Purchase of raw materials 6,421 4,568
— FEHRA — Interest income received 270 80
— SHE R — Sale of technical know-how 2,005 —
— HEAERS — Sale of work-in-progress 4,759 —
— HEWmE - — Sale of property,
BB K& plant and equipment 1,708 —

W R ¥ 2 R ER O BR 2 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIZBEEERNZE5IRAARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HEALTRS &)

E—NAAANE+T=—A+tB  AEEE
BRTBEAE  BHEBRERERR
RERBINGER - ERFERZ
(lAmEl)  BFEFBARARE
600,000 ' EETFREARKE
100,000T ' EEFEEZH ERAR
#1,100,0007T ' UL1&F B HEIFT
B EEWRHETUKRIE - BERiERA
REZEA MR (E=2—=4=A
ZHNB)BEEN - WETHIER
ERRIERECEN - AEEBE—
TEXRE+_A=+—HLEFEXH
HF & A AR #1,000,0007T (:2
THE : ARM¥200,0007T)
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Notes:

On 7th December 1996, the Group was granted the exclusive
right to use the trademark “Xinhua” (“Trademark”) by SXPGC
for its existing and future products in and outside the PRC
at an initial annual fee of RMB600,000 increasing at the rate
of an extra RMB100,000 per year until the annual fee reaches
the cap amount of RMB1,100,000, which shall stay as such
until the agreement is terminated. The terms of the agreement
shall continue to have effect during the validity period of the
Trademark, being 28th February 2013, subject to further
renewal of the registration of the Trademark. During the year
ended 31st December 2006, the annual fee paid by the
Group was RMB1,000,000 (2005: RMB200,000) as the
immediate holding company has waived part of the trademark
licence fees under the trademark licence agreement.

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government through its numerous
authorities, affiliates or other organisations (collectively
“State-owned Enterprises”). During the year ended 31st
December 2006, the Group had transactions with State-
owned Enterprises including, but not limited to, sales of
pharmaceutical products and purchases of raw materials.
The directors of the Company consider that transactions
with other State-owned Enterprises are activities in the
ordinary course of business, and that dealings of the Group
have not been significantly controlled or owned by the PRC
government. The Group has also established pricing policies
for products and such pricing policies do not depend on
whether or not the customers are State-owned Enterprises.
Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that none of
these transactions is a material related party transaction
that requires separate disclosure.
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(o) HBEZZEZEAT+-_A=+—
HIEFE  A£ECELA
HEZBRARRRER (=2
THE : AR®24,602,000
Jo) c RZEERFF+ A=
+—H AEESERKE
BERARNHEBERRER
—EERF  ARK
9,507,0007T) ° AR FES
REEEEBRATRRER
=ERTF  2EER-ZZ
NERHEF °

(c) RZZETZRF+=ZA=+—
A AEBZ&EERAA
AAEBEZRITEREEA
R #180,000,0007T 12t 42
R o

(d) EEEAB Z R

AEEEERAMIBEE
ABZ HMFIPET :

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

(€)

(d)

During the year ended 31st December 2006, the Group
ceased to pay any expenses on behalf of its immediate
holding company (2005 : RMB24,602,000), which were
charged back to the immediate holding company on
a cost reimbursement basis. As at 31st December
2006, there is no amount due from the immediate
holding company in connection with such transactions
(2005 : RMB9,507,000). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the amount is unsecured, interest-
free and was fully settled in 2006.

At 31st December 2006, the ultimate holding company
provide guarantee in respect of Group’s bank loans
amounted to RMB180,000,000.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

—ETRE —TERF

2006 2005

ARSTFTT ARKFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

=R A Short-term benefits 2,592 1,932
RE#SFRR%1% 27T Post-employment benefits 168 148
2,760 2,080

EZRFTETEAB ZHH The remuneration of directors and key

BMITHREREFHEZE SR
BEAXRREMEBEEE

TE °
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executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of Company’s subsidiaries as at 31st December 2006

B} I 2 7 40.
R-BERE+-_A=+—H2ZK
BARWMT
£ RS 32
HELT AR BXREEMA
Place of
incorporation
and kind of
Name of subsidiary legal entity

are as follows:

EREF ER
HH WANE IERBRETHE
Issued and fully
paid share capital/ Effective  Principal activities

registered capital

interest held

and place of operation

REMEREERRAT
Dongying Xinhua Drug Store
Company Limited

WRHERE (BN BRAF
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Europe) GmbH

WRHEBZEHERAA
Shandong Xinhua Medical
Trading Company Limited

HEMERERE (BH) BR AT
Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy (Chain)
Company Limited

HENERERRARDA
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design
Institute Company Limited

MENE=MCIERAA
Zibo Xinhua Sanhe Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited

HENENEREEREAAR
Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited

WERHFERZE N OEREEAT
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Import & Export Company Limited

mE BREARA
PRC, limited company

Bl ARALAA

Germany, limited company

B BREAAH
PRC, limited company

hE - BREARA
PRC, limited company

ME - BREEAF
PRC, limited company

e BREAAH
PRC, limited company

hE BREERA
PRC, limited company

ME - BREEAF
PRC, limited company

AK%900,0007C 46.64% RPESEENREERRTE
RMB900,000 46.64%  Retail sales of medicine and
medical products in the PRC
&17£650,0007C 76.90% RENEEEMREEZRRES
EUR650,000 76.90%  Trading of medicine and medical
products in Europe
AR 48,498,9007T 99.76% RRESEENREERRESH
RMB48,498,900 99.76%  Trading of medicine and medical
products in the PRC
AK%2,000,0007 88% RHELZENLBERRTE
RMB2,000,000 88%  Retail sales of medicine and
medical products in the PRC
AK%2,000,0007 90% RAELEBETEMNRG
RMB2,000,000 90%  Design of medical production
projects in the PRC
F71500,0007C 70% RPEEEREDREE
US$500,000 70%  Production of medical intermediates
in the PRC
%701,500,0007C 75%  NPELERHEEF R RAE
US$1,500,000 75%  Production and sale of calcium
polycarbophil materials in the PRC
A& 3,000,000 99.52% MBI 0 Em R ENHRI
RMB3,000,000 99.52%  Import and export of chemical

products and pharmaceutical
technical know-how in the PRC
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